Guide to the Andover Newton Theological Seminary Collection of Jonathan Edwards

GEN MSS 1542



Beinecke Staff

2019

P. O. Box 208330 New Haven, CT 06520-8330 (203) 432-2977 beinecke.library@yale.edu http://beinecke.library.yale.edu/

Table of Contents

Collection Overview	3
Collection Overview Requesting Instructions	3
Administrative Information	4
Immediate Source of Acquisition	4
Custodial History	4
Conditions Governing Access	4
Processing Information	4
Associated Materials	
Jonathan Edwards (1703-1758)	5
Content Description	6
Content Description Arrangement Collection Contents	7
Collection Contents	8
Series I: Manuscripts, circa 1650-1764, undated	8
Series II: Jonathan Edwards Autograph Sermons, 1733-1758	25
Series III: Miscellaneous Papers, 1685-1713, undated	30
Series IV: Letters Regarding Edwards Manuscripts, 1824-1903, undated	34
Series V: Additional Edwards-related Materials, 1714-1901, undated	
Series VI: Andover Newton Theological Seminary Collection File, 1957-2014, undated	
Selected Search Terms	40

Collection Overview

REPOSITORY:	Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library P. O. Box 208330 New Haven, CT 06520-8330 (203) 432-2977 beinecke.library@yale.edu http://beinecke.library.yale.edu/
CALL NUMBER:	GEN MSS 1542
CREATOR:	Edwards, Jonathan, 1703-1758 , author
TITLE:	Andover Newton Theological Seminary collection of Jonathan Edwards
DATES:	circa 1650-2017
PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION:	7.51 linear feet (20 boxes)
LANGUAGE:	English
SUMMARY:	The papers consist of writings and correspondence of and about theologian Jonathan Edwards and his family that were held by the Andover Newton Theological Seminary from the mid-nineteenth century until 2017. The collection includes sermons and other writings by Edwards, his correspondence with contemporaries, family correspondence including letters among Edwards, his wife and their children, his sisters, and his parents, and other family papers, including sermons by his father-in-law James Pierpont, who is regarded as one of the founders of Yale College. A few of the letters and other items are written on the versos of printed broadsides. The papers also include editorial work carried out by Edwards's descendants, including grandson Yale President Timothy Dwight and his sons Sereno E. Dwight and William T. Dwight, including manuscript copies of Edwards's writings chiefly made by Sereno E. Dwight, and correspondence among later Edwards descendants and Andover faculty members who had married into the Edwards family, as well as others, documenting further editorial projects.
ONLINE FINDING AID:	To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: <u>https://</u> hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.antsedwards

Requesting Instructions

To request items from this collection for use in the Beinecke Library reading room, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.antsedwards.

To order reproductions from this collection, please send an email with the call number, box number(s), and folder number(s) to <u>beinecke.images@yale.edu</u>.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

- b. box
- f. folder

Administrative Information

Immediate Source of Acquisition

Acquired as part of the establishment of the Andover Newton Seminary at Yale Divinity School, 2017.

Custodial History

According to a 1975 address by Ellis E. O'Neal, Jr. (the typescript of which is found in the Andover Newton Theological Seminary's files concerning the collection, Series VI), the Jonathan Edwards papers arrived at Andover in 1865 when they were inherited by Elizabeth Bradford Dwight, wife of Professor Egbert C. Smyth. O'Neal writes:

"The story of the Edwards' manuscripts at Andover Theological Seminary actually begins after the publication of what is commonly referred to as the Worcester edition of Edwards' works by the Rev. Samuel Austin in 1809. President Timothy Dwight of Yale, a grandson of Edwards', was requested by his uncles to write a new life of Edwards. Apparently it was his intention to incorporate it in a definitive edition of Edwards' works. However, his death in 1817 prevented the completion of this project. In a presentation before the Massachusetts Historical Society in 1901, Franklin B. Dexter, Assistant Librarian of Yale College, stated that there was 'good evidence that President Dwight's son, Dr. Sereno E. Dwight, received from his father...an injunction to carry out the work not yet accomplished, and accordingly soon began to gather the material, securing some manuscripts by gift and copies of others... A portion of this material is believed to have been secured by Dr. Dwight at Windsor, Connecticut, the home of Edwards' boyhood.' (Franklin B. Dexter, 'the Manuscripts of Jonathan Edwards,' Massachusetts Historical Society, Proceedings, 2nd. Ser., 15 (1901, 1902): 3-4.)

This material constituted a part of the estate which Sereno Dwight, upon his death in 1850, left to his brother, the Rev. Dr. William T. Dwight. The latter Dwight, an eminent minister in Portland, Maine, bequeathed the papers to his daughter, Elizabeth Bradford Dwight Smyth, the wife of Professor Egbert C. Smyth. Smyth was the Brown Professor of Ecclesiastical History at Andover and also served as president of the faculty for approximately nineteen years. Mrs. Smyth died a few weeks before her husband so the papers came to Andover from the Professor's estate."

Conditions Governing Access

This collection is open for research.

Sermons in Series II may be accessed only one folder at at time.

Processing Information

Collections are processed to a variety of levels, depending on the work necessary to make them usable, their perceived research value, the availability of staff, competing priorities, and whether or not further accruals are expected. The library attempts to provide a basic level of preservation and access for all collections, and does more extensive processing of higher priority collections as time and resources permit.

This collection remains arranged and described largely as it was received from Andover Newton Theological Seminary. It has been rehoused into standard archival containers. Fragile manuscripts in Series I, which were previously grouped together in folders by rough date span, have been rehoused into individual folders for each item. The original folder titles have been retained as headings in the list, the order of the items remains the same, and the item numbers within each grouping have been retained in the finding aid and on paper wrappers that remain with the items. The container list from Andover Newton Theological Seminary has been reformatted with minor changes to make it compatible with Yale's systems and standards. The original container list was created by George S. Claghorn, editor of The Letters of Jonathan Edwards, when the collection was on loan to Yale between 1957 and 1974, and was likely based on an existing arrangement of the material made prior to that time. The Claghorn list was edited and augmented by staff at Andover between 1974 and 2017. This current finding aid lists, as separate series, a file of nineteenth century correspondence about the collection (Series IV), additional material not included in the Claghorn finding aid or subsequently listed by Andover staff (Series V), and the Andover Newton Theological Seminary files about the collection (Series VI). As the original finding aid contained no contextual information, Beinecke staff also added descriptive information about Edwards and the collection contents.

The following items were not found by Beinecke staff when rehousing the collection after it was received in 2017:

--1751 Aug 7. Pynchon, Joseph. ALS to Col. Ephraim Williams and JE. With letter draft by JE to Thomas Hubbard, dated August 1751 (originally listed as 1751 item 13 in Manuscripts, now Series I).

--Dwight, Sereno E. Index to Dwight's Life of JE. 50 pp., quarto (originally listed as item 9 in Miscellaneous Papers, now Series III).

Throughout the collection on the paper enclosures from Andover are notes indicating that there exist photocopies in a separate file. This file is located in Series VI, Box 20.

Scope and content notes appearing in quotes have been transcribed from the original finding aid or from the housings or notes accompanying the items.

Associated Materials

Jonathan Edwards Collection (GEN MSS 151), Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library, Yale University.

Jonathan Edwards (1703-1758)

Jonathan Edwards, among the foremost theologians and philosophers of his time, was born in East Windsor, Connecticut, on October 5, 1703. He attended Yale College and graduated with a Bachelor of Arts in 1720. He returned in 1723 to receive his Master of Arts degree, and served as a tutor from 1724 to 1726. Upon leaving Yale, he succeeded his grandfather, Solomon Stoddard, as minister of the Congregationalist Church at Northampton, Massachusetts from 1726 to 1750. There he became known as an evangelical preacher and stern Calvinist, helping inspire the "Great Awakening" of the 1740s. His writings, which were widely circulated, included A Faithful Narrative, Sinners in the Hands of an Angry God, Distinguishing Marks of a Work of the Spirit of God, Some Thoughts Concerning the Revivals, and A Treatise Concerning Religious Affections.

Edwards eventually became alienated from his Northampton congregation, and was dismissed after a protracted controversy over qualifications for church membership. In 1751 he became a missionary to the Mahican and Mohawk Indians at Stockbridge, Massachusetts, and minister to the English congregation there. While at Stockbridge he continued writing treatises that expounded his theology, including Freedom of the Will, Original Sin, The Nature of True Virtue, and The End for Which God Created the World. In 1757, he accepted an offer to become the president of the College of New Jersey, now Princeton University. In March 1758 he received a smallpox innoculation which proved to be infected, and died.

For more information on Edwards's life, see George M. Marsden, Jonathan Edwards: A Life (New Haven: Yale University Press, 2003); Perry Miller, Jonathan Edwards (New York: Sloan, 1949); Ola E. Winslow, Jonathan Edwards, 1703-1758: A Biography (New York: Macmillan, 1941); and Iain H. Murray, Jonathan Edwards: A New Biography (Carlisle, Penn.: Banner of Truth, 1987). Readers should also consult The Works of Jonathan Edwards (New Haven: Yale University Press, 1957-ongoing) for further definitive information on Edwards's life and writings. **EDWARDS FAMILY** 1.Timothy Edwards (1669-1758) m. (1694) Esther Stoddard (1672-1771) 2.-Esther Edwards (1695-1766) m. (1727) Samuel Hopkins 2.-Elizabeth Edwards (1697-1733) m. Jabez Huntington 2.-Anne Edwards (1699-1790) m. John Ellsworth 2.-Mary Edwards (1701-1777) 2.-Jonathan Edwards (1703-1758) m. (1727) Sarah Pierpont (1710-1758) 3.---Sarah Edwards (1728-1805) m. (1750) Elihu Parsons 3.---Jerusha Edwards (1730-1747) 3.---Esther Edwards (1732-1758) m. (1752) Aaron Burr (1715-1757) 3.---Mary Edwards (1734-1807) m. (1750) Timothy Dwight (1726-1777) 4.----Timothy Dwight (1752-1817) 5.-----Sereno Edwards Dwight (1786-1850) 5.-----William Theodore Dwight (1795-1865) m. Elizabeth Bradford 6.-----Elizabeth Bradford Dwight (1835-1904) m. Egbert C. Smyth (1829-1904) 3.---Lucy Edwards (1736-1786) m. (1764) Jahleel Woodbridge 3.---Timothy Edwards (1738-1813) m. (1760) Rhoda Ogden 4.----William Edwards (1770-1851) m. Rebecca Tappan 5. -----Anna Maria Edwards (1812-1893) m. Edwards A. Park (1808-1900) 3.---Susannah Edwards (1740-1802) m. Eleazer Porter 3.---Eunice Edwards (1743-1822) m. (1764) Thomas Pollock 3.---Jonathan E. Edwards (1745-1801) m. (1770) Sarah Porter 4.----Jonathan W. Edwards (1772-1831) m. Elizabeth Tryon 5.-----Tryon Edwards (1809-1894) 3.---Elizabeth Edwards (1747-1762) 3.---Pierpont Edwards (1749-1826) m. (1769) Frances Ogden 2.-Eunice Edwards (1706-1778) m. Simon Backus 2.-Abigail Edwards (1707-1764) m. William Metcalf 2.-Jerusha Edwards (1710-1729) 2.-Hannah Edwards (1713-1773) m. Seth Wetmore 3.---Lucy Wetmore (1748-1826) m. Chauncey Whittlesey 2.-Lucy Edwards (1715-1736) 2.-Martha Edwards (1718-1794) m. Moses Tuttle

Content Description

The papers consist of writings and correspondence of and about theologian Jonathan Edwards and his family that were held by the Andover Newton Theological Seminary from the mid-nineteenth century until 2017. The collection includes sermons and other writings by Edwards, his correspondence with contemporaries, family correspondence including letters among Edwards, his wife and their children, his sisters, and his parents, and other family papers, including sermons by his father-in-law James Pierpont, who is regarded as one of the founders of Yale College. A few of the letters and other items are written on the versos of printed broadsides. The papers also include editorial work carried out by Edwards's descendants, including grandson Yale President Timothy Dwight and his sons Sereno E. Dwight and William T. Dwight, including manuscript copies of Edwards's writings chiefly made by Sereno E. Dwight, and correspondence among later Edwards descendants and Andover faculty members who had married into the Edwards family, as well as others, documenting further editorial projects.

Throughout the papers is evidence of the scholarship and editorial work by generations of Edwards descendants in the form of notes and descriptions accompanying many of the items, often on former enclosures that also bear a previous numbering system for the papers. Additional notes by Andover librarians and archivists and by editors of the Yale edition of Edwards's works are also occasionally present.

Arrangement

Organized into six series: I. Manuscripts, circa 1650-1764, undated. II. Sermons, 1733-1758. III. Miscellaneous Papers, 1685-1714, undated. IV. Letters Regarding Edwards Manuscripts, 1824-1903. V. Additional Edwards-Related Materials, 1714-1901. VI. Andover Newton Theological Seminary Collection File, 1957-2017.

Collection Contents Series I: Manuscripts, circa 1650-1764, undated

3.75 linear feet

The series contains correspondence, notes, and other writings by Jonathan Edwards and members of his family. A few letters from others outside the family are present, including contemporary theologians and community members. Throughout are later manuscript copies created by Edwards descendants, chiefly his great-grandson Sereno Edwards Dwight. In most cases the original is also present in the collection. The copies are dated, as they were in the finding aid received with the collection, for the content of the original rather than the creation of the copy.

Series I. Manuscripts is arranged in rough chronological order, with undated material at the beginning. The material is arranged under headings which correspond to the folder groupings in which it was housed at Andover Newton Theological Seminary. Within each grouping items are numbered; this numbering system and the order of the material reflect the arrangement of the material at Andover. Dates of material in a few cases do not match the date heading under which items are filed.

Ν	o date 1	1744-1754 <i>,</i> undated
b. 1, f. 1	1. Edwards, Eunice. Letter to Mary Edwards at Northampton.	Undated
b. 1, f. 2	2. Burr, Aaron. Letterbook. Also college records, 2 sections (1751-54)	1751-1754 <i>,</i> undated
b. 1, f. 3	3. JE. Fragment of letter draft. On letter cover to Mrs. Esther Edwards at Northampton.	Undated
b. 1 , f. 4	4. JE. Letter draft. On letter cover to JE at Stockbridge.	Undated
b. 1, f. 5	5. JE, Jr. Theological memoranda. Octavo notebook in heavy brown cover.	Undated
b. 1, f. 6	6. Unidentified. Letter fragment, possibly by Ebenezer Baldwin of Danbury, Conn., to Samuel Langdon of Portsmouth, N.H.	Undated
b. 1, f. 7	7. JE. Petition drafts on letter cover to JE at Stockbridge.	Undated
b. 1, f. 8	8. Unidentified. Information relating to the settling of JE in Northampton after his dismissal from First Church. 11/2 leaves.	Undated
b. 1, f. 9	9. JE. Fragment of letter addressed to Col. Timothy Dwight in Northampton.	Undated
b. 1, f. 10	10a. JE. Fragment of draft of his Spider letter. 1 leaf.	Undated
b. 1, f. 11	lOb. JE. Memoranda relating to a case of ecclesiastical discipline. 2 leaves.	Undated
b. 1, f. 12	11. JE. Memoranda on cases of discipline at Northampton, mainly in the hand of JE. 12 pieces.	1744, undated
b. 1, f. 13	12. JE. Fragments of letter drafts. 3 fragments. (1) "N.I" On lettercover to JE at Stock bridge, to be left at Samuel Hopkins' or Aaron Sheldon's. (2) "N.3". (3) Small fragment beginning "&, affairs & must attend to."	Undated
b. 1, f. 14	13.Fragment about movement of atoms, in Sereno E. Dwight's hand. Transcript.	Undated

No date 1 (continued)

b. 1, f. 15	14. Edwards, Timothy. Sermon notebook, with texts, doctrines, and some development. Dates in 1728-1730. 11 leaves.	Undated
b. 1, f. 16	15. JE's finances. One sheet in Sereno E. Dwight's hand.	Undated
Noc	late 2	Undated
b. 1, f. 17	1. Pierpont, James. Notebook of the First Divinity Lecture.	
b. 1, f. 18	2. Unidentified. Cathechism notebook.	
b. 1, f. 19	3a. "Observations concerning the Scripture Oecnomy of the Trinity." Fragment of a notebook. 8 leaves.	
b. 1, f. 20	3b. "Observations concerning the Scripture Oeconomy of the Trinity." Copy in the hand of Henry E. Dwight.	
b. 1, f. 21	4. Dwight, Sereno, E. "Notices of my Father's Life." 1 leaf.	
b. 1, f. 22	5. JE. Fragment of letter draft. On letter cover to Mrs. Sarah Edwards at Northampton. 1 leaf.	
b. 1, f. 23	6. Edwards, Timothy. Small book of theological observations and questions, etc.	
b. 1, f. 24	7. Unidentified. [Billing, Edward], Letter addressed to Col. Dwight in Northampton. 2 leaves. In favor of installing JE at Northampton.	
b. 1, f. 25	8. Fragment of draft, probably in the hand of Timothy Edwards. An account of the sickness of Jerusha Edwards of East Windsor. 1 leaf.	
b. 1, f. 26	9. Unidentified. Fragments of drafts. Memorials on Jerusha Edwards of East Windsor. 2 leaves.	
b. 1, f. 27	10. Dwight, Sereno E. Draft of an essay on Eusebius.	
b. 1, f. 28	11. Dwight, Sereno E. To the Reader of Eusebius.	
b. 1, f. 29	12. Grant, Samuel. Letter to Timothy Edwards. 1 leaf.	
b. 1, f. 30	13. JE. Fragments of letter drafts. 3 fragments.	
	(1)On letter cover to JE at Northampton. 15.6 x 19 cm. (2) On letter cover to JE at Northampton. 18 x 20.7 cm. (3) Small fragment beginning "at the same time"	
b. 1, f. 31	14. Dwight, Sereno E. Indian vocabulary notes at the end of a fragment of a printed vocabulary book.	
b. 1, f. 32	15. JE. Some reasons briefly hinted at, why those Rules Exod. 22.16 & Deut. 22.28, 29 relating to the obligation of man to marry a virgin that He had humbled, ought to be esteemed 3 leaves.	
	Accompanied by typescript (photocopy) transcription by John M. Lovejoy, undated	
No date 3		
b. 1 , f. 33	1. Unidentified. [JE, Jr.] On the Abridgment of Blair. 28 leaves.	Undated
b. 1, f. 34	2. JE, Jr. Forms of confession of faith and church covenant.	Undated

No date 3 (continued)

b. 1, f. 35	3. Unidentified. Miscellaneous Observations concerning Justification. Referred by Sereno E. Dwight as the "Small book."	Undated
b. 1, f. 36	4. JE, Jr. Address to Graduates.	Undated
b. 2, f. 37	5. JE. Notes against Mr. Kellogg. Two fragments, one on a letter cover to Sarah Edwards at Northampton.	Undated
b. 2, f. 38	6. JE. Apostrophe on Sarah Pierpont. Transcript, with other miscellaneous notes, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	Undated
b. 2, f. 39	7. Edwards, Susannah. Fragment of a letter to Mrs. Mary Dwight.	Undated
b. 2, f. 40	8. Metcalf, Abigail. Letter to Timothy Edwards at Windsor.	Undated
b. 2, f. 41	9. Edwards, Susannah. Fragment of letter to Mary Dwight at Northampton.	Undated
b. 2, f. 42	10-11. Edwards, Susannah [Lucy?]. Letter to Mrs. Mary Dwight. Stockbridge, April 1 [1759]	[1759] April 1
b. 2, f. 43	12. Dwight, Michael of Dedham. Deed, with sums and notes on verso.	Undated
b. 2, f. 44	13. Edwards, Abigail. Letter to Mrs. Mary Edwards at Northampton.	Undated
Nod	late 4	Undated
b. 2, f. 45	1. JE. Treatise on Grace. [Sereno] Dwight, transcript.	
b. 2, f. 46	 2. JE. "On The Soul," fragment of the earliest extant manuscript by JE. On the verso is "A memd for my daughter Esther," probably in the hand of Timothy Edwards. Note in original finding aid: "This prob Esther Edwardsnot JE per Ken Minkema." 	
Noc	late 5	
b. 2, f. 47	1. JE. Fragment of letter draft to unidentified recipient.	Undated
b. 2, f. 48	 2. JE. Sermon notes. These re-located to separate sermons collection [Series II] Folder contains only clipped portion of previous housing with note: "2. Jonathan Edwards: Notes [autograph] on "fan-papers," for sermons or lectures." Annotated by T. A. Schafer in 1960 regarding removal of sermons to sermon file. 	Undated
b. 2, f. 49	3. JE. "Subjects."	Undated
b. 2, f. 50	 4-5. JE. Pleaces of the Old Testament which Intimate a Future State. Fragments. (1) Sermon or study notes, pinned together, 1-4, 2 leaves. (2) One sheet continuing same, 5-10. 	Undated
b. 2, f. 51	6. JE. "Types."	Undated
b. 2, f. 52	7. JE. "Proposals for printing Misrepresentations corrected and Truth vindicated." 1 leaf.	Undated

No date 5 (continued)

b. 2, f. 53	8. JE. "Remember this." Notes on letter cover addressed to JE at East Windsor.	Undated
b. 2, f. 54	9. JE. "Qualifications for Communion." Fragment of draft.	[1749]
	"[1749] Sermon on Ezekiel 44:9, Arguments I-IV at Yale" Note from Kenneth Minkema on folder: "This is the concluding portion of a lecture series on Ezek. 44:9 that JE delivered in early 1750 in Northampton as part of his defense of his view of church admisison. Pp. 1-42 of the lecture are at Yale's Beinecke Library [GEN MSS 151]. KLM 12/02"	
b. 2, f. 55	10. Unidentified. Probably an ordination sermon. 2 leaves	Undated
b. 2, f. 56	11. JE. Fragments of sermons or study notes in Latin. [Commentary on Hebrew ? Wilbur b/81 word study]	Undated
b. 2, f. 57	12.Unidentified. "Whether man in a state of nature has so much power in his will"	Undated
	"[Joseph Moody possiblyWilbur]"	
b. 2, f. 58	13. Sarah Parsons. Fragments of letters. 4 pieces.	Undated
	No date 6 A	Undated
b. 2, f. 59	1. JE. "Prophecies of the Messiah": "Miscellanies" 1067, 1068.	
	No date 6 B	Undated
b. 2, f. 60	1. JE. "Miscellanies" 1068 continued.	
	No date 6 C	Undated
b. 2, f. 61	1. JE. Supplement to "Miscellanies" 1067-68.	
	16 A	[Late 1600s-1725?]
b. 3, f. 62	1. Edwards, Timothy. Notebook. "Notices of his Father Rich. Edwards, Esq." [1725?].	[1725?]
b. 3, f. 63	2. Collection of maxims and apothegms, possibly by Timothy Edwards.(?)	Undated
b. 3, f. 64	3. "The First Sermon." Acts 11: 21. Possibly by Timothy Edwards. (?)	Undated
	16 В	[Late 1600s]
b. 3, f. 65	1. JE. "Of the Rainbow." 1 leaf.	
b. 3, f. 66	2. JE. Scripture images. 2 leaves.	
	16 C	[Late 1600s]
b. 3, f. 67	1. JE. "Of Being," "Of the Prejudices of the Imagination."	
	16 D	[Late 1600s]
b. 3, f. 68	1. JE. Natural philosophy. Contains: "Of Atoms," & "Things to be considered and written fully about," two independent numbered series.	
	16 E	[Late 1600s]

16-- E (continued)

b. 3, f. 69	1. JE. Draft of "The Flying Spider." 1 leaf.	
	16 F	[Late 1600s]
b. 3, f. 70	1. JE. "Of Insects." One folio leaf, one small envelope with fragment.	
	1700-1719	1702-1719
b. 3, f. 71	1. 1719 Jun 30. Cutler, Timothy. ALS to "Revd Sr" [Timothy Edwards] about JE and Isaac Stiles.	1790 June 30
b. 3, f. 72	2. 1719 Mar 26. JE. ALS to Mrs. Mary Edwards.	1719 March 26
b. 3, f. 73	3. 1719/20 Mar 2 Edwards, Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Mary Edwards.	1720 March 2
b. 3, f. 74	4. 1719 Jul 24. JE. ALS to Timothy Edwards.	1719 July 24
b. 3, f. 75	5. 1716 Apr. Edwards, Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Mary Edwards. Postscript dated 2 May 1716.	1716 April
b. 3, f. 76	6. 1716 May 10. JE. ALS to Mrs. Mary Edwards.	1716 May 10
b. 3, f. 77	7. 1716 Sep 18. Woodbridge, Timothy. ALS to Timothy Edwards	1716 September 18
b. 3, f. 78	8. 1717 May. Unsigned statement about settlement of estate.	1717 May
b. 3, f. 79	9. 1717/8 Jan 27. Edwards, Timothy. ALS to "Dear daughter."	1718 January 27
b. 3, f. 80	10. 1711 Aug 3. Edwards, Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Esther Edwards. 11/2 leaves.	1711 August 3
b. 3, f. 81	11. 1711 Aug 7 . Edwards, Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Esther Edwards. 2 leaves.	1711 August 7
b. 3, f. 82	12.1711 Aug 17 . Edwards, Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Esther Edwards.	1711 August 17
b. 3, f. 83	13. 1711 Sep 10. Edwards, Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Esther Edwards.	1711 September 10
b. 3, f. 84	14. 1713 Dec 4. Edwards, Timothy. Sermon notes.	1713 December 4
b. 3, f. 85	15. 1712 Apr 24. Edwards, Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Esther Edwards.	1712 April 24
b. 3, f. 86	16. 1702 Sep 11? Bulkeley, G. ALS to Timothy Edwards.	1702 September 11
b. 3, f. 87	17. 1708 Apr 5. Letter to Timothy Edwards "at Scantick"	1708 April 5
b. 3, f. 88	18. No date. JE. "Observations on Phenomena of Nature."	Undated
	1720-1729 A	1719–1729
b. 3, f. 89	1a. 1719. Auditor's notes on sermons by Solomon Stoddard and David Parsons.	1719
b. 3, f. 90	1b. 1720 Oct-Dec. Auditor's notes on sermons by Solomon Stoddard and "Mr. Anthony."	1720
b. 3, f. 91	2. 1727. Auditor's notes on sermons by JE and Solomon Stoddard.	1727

1720-1729 A (continued)

b. 3, f. 92	3. No date. Edwards, Timothy. "My daughter Anne of her dear Sister Jerusha": reflections of Anne Edwards about her late sister Jerusha. 1 leaf in the hand of Timothy Edwards.	Undated
b. 3, f. 93	4. No date. Edwards, Timothy. Notebook. Quotations from theological writers, memorials of Jerusha. Octavo. 23 leaves (sewn together at the top). "Things taken out of a book Intitled the Arrangement and Conviction of Atheism"	Undated
b. 3, f. 94	5. No date. JE. Rough draft of his M.A. thesis in Latin.	Undated
b. 3, f. 95	6. No date. Edwards, Timothy. Fragment of a letter to Stephen Mix.	Undated
b. 3, f. 96	7-8. [1729?] Edwards, Timothy. ALS to "Dear Mary" [Mrs. Mary Dwight] dated [1729/]. Also contains a letter cover to Mrs. Mary Dwight in the hand of Timothy Edwards.	[1729?]
b. 3, f. 97	9. 1729 Oct 6. Edwards, Timothy. ALS to his daughter in Killingworth. [Anne Edwards]	1729 October 6
b. 3, f. 98	10. 1729 Sep 12. Edwards, Timothy. ALS to his daughter in Killingworth.	1729 September 12
1720	D-1729 B	1721–1729
b. 3, f. 99	1. 1729 Jul 8. Hooker, William. Power of Attorney to Captain T. Dwight.	1729 July 8
b. 3, f. 100	2. 1729 Dec 25. Unidentified. Notes about the death of Jerusha Edwards.	1729 December 25
b. 3, f. 101	3. No date. Petition for support of heirs of the Rev. Edward Taylor of Westfield. (With transcription and introduction by Professor Thomas Davis of Kent State University).	Undated
b. 3, f. 102	4. 1725 Oct 11. Edwards , Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Esther Edwards, Senior.	1725 October 11
b. 3, f. 103	5. 1725 Oct 20. Edwards , Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Esther Edwards, Senior.	1725 October 20
b. 3, f. 104	6. 1725 Nov 10. Edwards , Timothy. ALS to Mrs. Esther Edwards, Senior.	1725 November 10
b. 3, f. 105	7. JE 2 Letters. A) Writer's copy, to his cousin dated 1 Nov 1720. B) Writer's copy, to his uncle Stephen Mix.	1720 Nov 1, Undated
b. 3, f. 106	8. 1721 Mar 1. JE. ALS to Timothy Edwards.	1721 March 1
b. 3, f. 107	9. 1721 Dec 12. JE. ALS to "Dear Sister," (cropped).	1721 December 12
b. 3, f. 108	10. 1723 Jan. JE. Copy of his diary in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight. Quarto. 4 leaves.	1723 January
b. 3, f. 109	11. 1721 Apr 11. Dwight, Daniel. ALS to Timothy Dwight.	1727 April 11
1730	D-1739	1730-1739

1730-1739 (continued)

b. 4, f. 110	1. 1738. Edwards, Timothy. Notebook.	1738
	 Memoranda of ecclesiastical council meetings in 1738. 1st. leaf, recto, unpaged. (2) Material from Stoddard's "Safety of Appearing." Pp. 1-12. (3) Quotations from a sermon of Mr. Chauncy, preached June 4, 1741. Pp. 12-20. Quotations from "A Discourse of Doctr : Prestons Concerning Spiritual Death." Pp. 20-[25]. 	
b. 4, f. 111	2. 1735 May 30. JE. ALS to Benjamin Colman, with post¬script dated 3 June 1735, concerning the "surprizing conversions" of 1734¬35. 4 leaves. [Photocopy file]	1735 May 30
b. 4, f. 112	3. 1735 May 30. JE. Transcript of a letter to Benjamin Colman, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight. Lacks postscript.	1735 May 30
b. 4, f. 113	4. 1731 Jul 25. Edwards, A. ALS to Mary Edwards at Windsor.	1731 July 25
b. 4, f. 114	5. 1738/39 Mar 23. Doolittle, Benjamin. ALS to Benjamin Wright, et al. Defective at the beginning; last page only, on 1st leaf, recto. The two inside pages contain a response addressed to "Dear Brethren;" on outside: "Mr. Doolittles Second Answer." 2 leaves.	1739 March 23
b. 4, f. 115	6. 1739/40 Feb 10. Unidentified. "Ser:2nd Dct Job 14:10" Continuation of a sermon on death.	1740 February 10
174	1	1741–1742
b. 4, f. 116	1. No date. JE. "Advice to Young Converts." Printed tract No. 196, with alterations and "p , 186" possibly in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	[1741]
b. 4, f. 117	2. 1741/42 Mar 16. "copy of a covenant, enter'd into and Subscribed by the People of God at Northampton" Printed. 2 leaves.	1742 March 16
b. 4, f. 118	3. 1741 Sep 18. Unidentified. Letter to "Revd & Worthy Gentlemen." Probably a draft.	1741 September 18
b. 4, f. 119	4. 1746/47 Jan 20. Sermon: "East Hampt Janr ye 20 1746/47 l Jon 3:4" 6 leaves.	1747 January 20
b. 4, f. 120	5. No date. List of charges against an unnamed minister, possibly Benjamin Doolittle. Upper half of leaf only.	[1741]
b. 4, f. 121	6. 1741 Aug 31. JE. ALS to ["Deacon (Moses) Lyman of Goshen"].	1741 August 3
b. 4, f. 122	7. 1741 Mar. Unidentified. Letter to "Revd & dear Sr." Pencilled note at head: " To Edwards from Burr." 2 leaves.	1741 March
174	12	1742
b. 4, f. 123	1. 1742 May 11. "A copy of the Resolves of a Council of Churches , met at Northampton, May 11, 1742, to consider what may be done to promote Religion, and good Order in the Churches." Printed.	1742 May 11
b. 4, f. 124	2. No date. Cover of the "Miscellanies," Book 6. JE's "VI" & "6" top and bottom, front and back. On front in a later hand: "Prophecies of the Messiah, by President; Edwards, in his hand writing." Inside backing: Yale commencement program. Date lost at bottom. At head, in later hand: "[Commencement, 1742]."	
174	13	1743–1744

b. 4, f. 125	1. No date. Tennent, Gilbert. ALS to "Revd and dear Sir," presumably to JE. On back and at bottom of front are notes by JE, apparently a draft of a statement as scribe for a councilor other ecclesiastical committee on the case of a Mr. & Mrs. Kingsly. 1 Leaf, 4 pieces. [Photocopy]	
b. 4, f. 126	2. 1743/44 Feb 9. JE. Letter draft "to Mr. [Elnathan] Whitman of Hartford." 4 leaves.	1744 February 9
b. 4, f. 127	3. 1743 May 12. JE. ALS To William McCulloch at Cambuslang, Scotland. 2 leaves. Accompanied by photocopy	1743 May 12
b. 4, f. 128	4. 1743 Mar 5. JE. ALS to [William McCulloch]. 6 leaves.	1743 March 5
1744	-1746	1744-1747
b. 4, f. 129	1. No date. JE. Fragment of a letter draft to an unidentified recipient. On verso of broadside "A Proclamation for a general Fast," dated 26 February 1745 [1746]. With notation on fragment of a postcard that sermon notes are in the sermon file.	Undated, 1746 February 2
b. 4, f. 130	2. 1746 Nov. Gillespie, Thomas. Draft of a letter to JE. 3 leaves. [photocopy]	1746 November
b. 4, f. 131	3. No date. Dwight, Sereno E. Notes relating to the JE-Clap controversy. 1) One-third of a folio leaf. 2) Two quarto leaves.	Undated
b. 4, f. 132	4. No date. Dwight, Sereno E. Notebook relating to the JE-Clap controversy.	Undated
b. 4, f. 133	5. 1746/7 Jan 21. JE. ALS to Mr. McCulloch. 2 leaves.	1747 January 21
b. 4, f. 134	6. 1745 Mar 25. Metcalfe, William. ALS to Mrs. Hannah Edwards.	1745 March 25
1747		1747
b. 4, f. 135	1. 1747 Sep 4. JE. ALS to Thomas Gillespie. 6 leaves. "Dwight pp 232-242"	1747 September 4
b. 4, f. 136	2. 1747 Dec 14. JE. ALS to John Brainerd. 2 leaves; one leaf in two pieces.	1747 December 14
b. 4, f. 137	3. 1747 Mar 17. Dwight, Timothy. Warrant for the arrest of Nathan Goodman.	1747 March 17
b. 4, f. 138	4. 1747 Sep 23. JE. Transcript of a letter to William McCulloch, in an unidentified hand.	1747 September 23
b. 4, f. 139	5. 1747 Sep 23. JE. ALS to William McCulloch. 2 leaves.	1747 September 23
b. 4, f. 140	6. 1747 Jan 21. JE. Transcript of a letter to William McCulloch, in an unidentified hand.	1747 January 21
1748	}	1748
b. 4, f. 141	1. 1748 Sep 19. Gillespie, Thomas. Draft of a letter to JE. 6 leaves.	1748 September 19
b. 4, f. 142	2. 1748 Oct 7. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mr. McCulloch, in an unidentified hand.	1748 October 7

b. 4, f. 143	3. 1748 Oct 7. JE. ALS to Mr. McCulloch. 2 leaves.	1748 October 7
b. 4, f. 144	4. 1748 Oct 14. JE. Transcript of a letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand. "Dwight pp. 265-270"	1748 October 14
b. 4, f. 145	5. 1748 Oct 14. JE. ALS to John Erskine. 4 leaves.	1748 October 14
b. 4, f. 146	6. 1748 Aug 31. JE. Transcript of a letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand . "Dwight pp. 251-252"	1748 August 31
b. 4, f. 147	7. 1748 Aug 31. JE. ALS to John Erskine. A leaf of additional notes in an unidentified hand.	1748 August 31
b. 4, f. 148	8. No date. JE. Fragment of a letter draft to an unidentified recipient, on verso of a broadside announcing the Yale master's candidates and theses for the 1748 commencement.	Undated
1749		1749
b. 4, f. 149	1. 1749 Mar 17. Willison, John. Transcript of a letter to JE, in an unidentified hand.	1749 March 17
b. 4, f. 150	2. 1749 Mar 17. Willison, John. ALS to JE. 2 leaves.	1749 March 17
b. 4, f. 151	3. 1749 May 23. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mr. McCulloch, in an unidentified hand.	1749 May 23
b. 4, f. 152	4. 1749 May 23. JE. ALS to Mr. McCulloch. 2 leaves.	1749 May 23
b. 4, f. 153	5. 1749 May 20. JE. Transcript of a letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand. ″Dwight pp. 287-297″	1749 May 20
b. 4, f. 154	6. 1749 May 20. JE. ALS to John Erskine. 2 leaves.	1749 May 20
b. 4, f. 155	7. 1749 Jul 26. JE. ALS to "Dear Child." 2 leaves. Accompanied by photocopy	1749 July 26
b. 4, f. 156	8. 1749 May 23. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mr. Robe, in an unidentified hand.	1749 May 23
b. 4, f. 157	9. 1749 May 23. JE. ALS to Mr. Robe. 3 leaves.	1749 May 23
1750)	1750
b. 5, f. 158	1. No date. JE. Sermon or study notes. Two fragments. One page of Dwight's notes and figures.	Undated
b. 5, f. 159	2. 1750 Apr 2. JE. ALS to Thomas Gillespie. 6 leaves, with 1 leaf dated 3 July 1750. ″Dwight pp. 287-297″	1750 April 2-July 3
b. 5, f. 160	3. 1750 Jul 5. JE. ALS to John Erskine. 6 leaves.	1750 July 5
b. 5, f. 161	4. 1750 Jul 5. JE. Transcript of letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand. "Dwight pp. 405-413"	1750 July 5

b. 5 , f. 162	5. 1750 Nov 15. JE. ALS to John Erskine. 2 leaves.	1750 November 15
b. 5, f. 163	6. 1750 Nov 15. JE. Transcript of letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand. ″Dwight p. 415″	1750 November 15
b. 5, f. 164	7.1750 Jul 6. JE. ALS to William McCulloch. 2 leaves.	1750 July 6
b. 5, f. 165	8. 1750 Jul 6. JE. Transcript of a letter to William McCulloch, in an unidentified hand.	1750 July 6
b. 5, f. 166	9. No date. "We the subscribers members of the first Church in Northampton offer what follows for our vindication in absenting from the Communion at the Lords Table" 2 leaves, with lower half of the second leaf missing.	Undated
1751		1751–1752
b. 5, f. 167	1. No date. JE. Notes regarding children and O.T. Chronology.	Undated
b. 5, f. 168	2. 1751 Jun. JE. Transcript of a letter to William Hobby, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1751 June
b. 5, f. 169	3. [1751 Jun]. JE. Letter draft to William Hobby. On two leter covers addressed to JE at Stockbridge.	[1751 June]
b. 5, f. 170	4. Summer 1751. JE. Letter to Isaac Hollis, on a letter from Timothy Dwight to JE, dated 10 July 1751.	Summer 1751
b. 5, f. 171	5. 1751 Jul 2. JE. Transcript of a letter to Isaac Hollis, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1751 July 2
b. 5, f. 172	6. 1751 Jul 1. JE. Transcript of a letter to Thomas Gillespie, in an unidentified hand. ″Dwight pp. 462-468″	1751 July 1
b. 5 , f. 173	7. 1751 Jul 1. JE. ALS to Thomas Gillespie. 4 leaves.	1751 July 1
b. 5 , f. 174	8. 1751 Jun 28. JE. Transcript of a letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand. ″Dwight pp. 458-462″	1751 June 28
b. 5, f. 175	9. 1751 Jun 28. JE. ALS to John Erskine. 2 leaves.	1751 June 28
b. 5, f. 176	10. 1751 Nov 28. JE. Transcript of a letter to Lady Pepperell, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1751 November 28
b. 5, f. 177	11. 1751 Nov 28. JE. Letter draft to Lady Pepperell. 2 leaves, one on letter cover addressed to JE at Stockbridge.	1751 November 28
b. 5, f. 178	12. 1751 Nov 28. JE. Transcript of a letter to Sir William Pepperell, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1751 November 28
b. 5, f. 179	13a. 1751 Aug 31. JE. Transript of letter to Thomas Hubbard, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1751 August

b. 5, f. 180	14. [1752 Spring]. Subscribers who are members of the First Church, Northampton. Letter draft: "To the Rev. Mr. William Hobby, Pastor of the Church of Christ in Reading, to be communicated, " in the hand of JE. 2 leaves.	[Spring 1752]
b. 5, f. 181	15. 1751 Oct. JE. Transcript of a petition: "To the Hon. Spencer Phips Esqr Lieut Gov. & Commander in chief in & over his Majesty's Province of the Massachusetts Bay" in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1751 October
1752	2 A	1752
b. 5, f. 182	1. 1752 Aug 4. Foxcroft, Thomas. ALS to Timothy Dwight.	1752 August 4
b. 5, f. 183	2. 1752 Jul 7. JE. Transcript of a letter to John Erskine, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 July 7
	"Dwight pp. 496-499"	
b. 5, f. 184	3. 1752 Apr 16. Clark, Peter. ALS to "Honored Sir." 1 leaf in 2 pieces.	1752 April 16
b. 5, f. 185	4. No date. Dwight, Sereno E. Notes: 1) Recto: random notes containing dates and letters. 2) Verso: names of recipients and dates of many letters.	Undated
1752	2 B	1752
b. 5 , f. 186	1. 1752 Mar 31. Foxcroft, Thomas. ALS to Timothy Dwight.	1752 March 31
b. 5, f. 187	2. 1752 Jan 27. JE. Transcript of a letter to Timothy Edwards, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight. "Dwight pp. 485-487"	1752 January 27
b. 5, f. 188	3. 1752 Jun 30. JE. ALS to Timothy Dwight.	1752 June 30
b. 5, f. 189	4. [1752]. JE. Note to Col. Dwight. "I have sent the copy of my answer to Mr. Williams"	[1752]
b. 5, f. 190	5. 1752 Jun. JE. Transcript of a letter to the People of Northampton, in an unidentified hand.	1752 June
b. 5, f. 191	6a. 1752 Feb 24. JE. Letter draft to Joshua Paine [Joseph Paice]. On verso of the 1750 Yale commencement broadside.	1752 February 24
b. 5, f. 192	6b. 1752 Feb 24. JE. Letter draft, part two, to Joshua Paine [Joseph Paice]. On verso of 1750 Princeton commencement broadside.	1752 February 24
b. 5, f. 192 b. 5, f. 193		
	verso of 1750 Princeton commencement broadside. 7. 1752 Feb 24. JE. Transcript of a letter to Joshua Paine [Joseph Paice], in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	
b. 5, f. 193	verso of 1750 Princeton commencement broadside. 7. 1752 Feb 24. JE. Transcript of a letter to Joshua Paine [Joseph Paice], in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 February 24
b. 5, f. 193 1752	 verso of 1750 Princeton commencement broadside. 7. 1752 Feb 24. JE. Transcript of a letter to Joshua Paine [Joseph Paice], in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight. 2 C 1. 1752 Jul 17. JE. Letter draft to Isaac Hollis. On a letter cover to JE at 	1752 February 24 1752
b. 5, f. 193 1752 b. 6, f. 194	 verso of 1750 Princeton commencement broadside. 7. 1752 Feb 24. JE. Transcript of a letter to Joshua Paine [Joseph Paice], in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight. 2 C 1. 1752 Jul 17. JE. Letter draft to Isaac Hollis. On a letter cover to JE at Northampton. 	1752 February 24 1752 1752 July 17

b. 6, f. 198	5. No date. JE. "Testimony." Notes and beginning of a letter draft to "Rev. honoured sir,".	Undated
b. 6, f. 199	6. 1752 Jul 17. JE. Letter draft to Isaac Hollis.	1752 July 17
b. 6, f. 200	7. 1752 Jul 17. JE. Transcript of a letter to Isaac Hollis, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 July 17
b. 6, f. 201	8. 1752 Nov 24. JE. ALS to Thomas Gillespie. 2 leaves.	1752 November 24
b. 6, f. 202	9. 1752 Nov 24. JE. Transcript of a letter to Thomas Gillespie, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 November 24
b. 6, f. 203	10. 1752 Jul 7. JE. Letter to John Erskine. 2 leaves.	1752 July 7
175	2 D	1752
b. 6, f. 204	1. 1752 Nov 23. JE. Letter to John Erskine. 2 leaves.	1752 November 23
b. 6, f. 205	2. 1752 Nov 23. JE. Transcript of a letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand. ″Dwight pp. 507-512″	1752 November 23
b. 6, f. 206	3. 1752 Jul 17. JE. Letter draft to Secretary Willard.	1752 July 17
b. 6, f. 207	4. 1752 Jul 17. JE. Transcript of a letter to Secretary Willard, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 July 17
b. 6, f. 208	5. 1752 Feb 18. JE. First part of a letter draft to Andrew Oliver; on verso, letter draft ot Andrew Oliver, 19 Feb 1752. On letter cover to JE at Stockbridge.	1752 February 18
b. 6, f. 209	6. 1752 Feb 18. JE. Second part of a letter draft to Andrew Oliver, on verso of 1750 Yale commencement broadside, listing master's candidates and questions.	1752 February 18
b. 6, f. 210	7. 1752 Feb 18. JE. Transcript of a letter to Andrew Oliver, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight	1752 February 18
b. 6, f. 211	8. No date. JE. Letter draft to Andrew Oliver, according to a notation by Sereno E. Dwight; on letter of Samuel Hopkins to JE, 8 May 1752.	1752 May 8, Undated
b. 6, f. 212	9. 1752 May. JE. Letter draft to Mr. Oliver, on letter cover to JE at Stockbridge.	1752 May
b. 6, f. 213	10. 1752 May. JE. Transcript of a letter to Andrew Oliver, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 May
b. 6, f. 214	11. 1752 Aug 27. JE. Transcript of a letter to Andrew Oliver, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 August 27
175	2 E	1752
b. 6, f. 215	1. 1752 Oct. JE. Letter draft to Mr. Oliver. On letter cover to JE at Stockbridge.	1752 October
b. 6, f. 216	2. 1752 Oct. JE. Transcript of a letter to Andrew Oliver, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 October

b. 6, f. 217	3.1752 Feb 27. JE. Fragment of a letter to an unidentified recipient [Timothy Dwight?]	1752 February 27
b. 6, f. 218	4. 1752 Feb 19. JE. Transcript of a letter to the Commissioners in Boston, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 February 19
b. 6, f. 219	5. 1752 Aug. JE. Letter draft to Mr. Oliver, on letter cover to Mr. Edward Bromfield in Boston.	1752 August
b. 6, f. 220	6. 1752 Mar 30. JE. Letter draft to Mr. Hubbard.	1752 March 30
b. 6, f. 221	6a. 1752 Mar 30. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mr. Hubbard, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 March 30
b. 6, f. 222	7. 1752 Mar 5. Pomroy, Ebenezer, et al., Committee of the First Church, Northampton. Report on "aggrieved Brethren." 2 leaves.	1752 March 5
b. 6, f. 223	8. No date. JE. "N.3", 4 fragments of a letter draft on a letter cover to JE at Northampton.	Undated
1752	F	1752
b. 6, f. 224	1. 1752 Nov 24. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mr. McCulloch, in an unidentified hand.	1752 November 24
b. 6, f. 225	2. 1752 Nov 24. JE. Letter to Mr. McCulloch. 2 leaves.	1752 November 24
b. 6, f. 226	3. 1752 Mar 10. JE. Transcript of a letter to Jasper Mauduit, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 March 10
b. 6, f. 227	4. 1752 Mar 10. JE. Letter draft to Jasper Mauduit. On 4 letter covers.	1752 March 10
b. 6, f. 228	5. 1752 Aug 29. JE. Letter draft to Speaker Hubbard.	1752 August 29
b. 6, f. 229	6. 1752 Aug 29. JE. Letter draft to Speaker Hubbard. 2 leaves.	1752 August 29
b. 6, f. 230	6a. 1752 Aug 29. JE. Transcript of a letter draft to Speaker Hubbard, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1752 August 29
b. 6, f. 231	7. No date. JE. "Account of Capt. Kellogg's Treatment of Mr. Hollis's scholars." Notes on a draft of a memorandum for house and land of JE at Stockbridge.	Undated
b. 6, f. 232	8. 1752 Mar 11. JE. Letter draft to unidentified recipient. On letter from Samuel Hopkins to JE.	1752 March 11
1753	A	1753
b. 6, f. 233	1. 1753 Dec 2. Burr, Esther. Letter to Mrs. Mary Dwight.	1753 December 2
b. 6, f. 234	2. 1753 Oct 18. JE. Letter to Mr. Gillespie. 2 leaves.	1753 October 18
b. 6, f. 235	3. 1753 Dec 10. JE. Fragment of a letter to an unidentified recipient.	1753 December 10
b. 6, f. 236	4. 1753 Oct 16. JE. Letter draft to Mr. Bromfield. On letter cover addressed to JE at Stockbridge.	1753 October 16

b. 6, f. 237	5. 1753 Oct 16. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mr. Bromfield, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1753 October 16
b. 6, f. 238	6. 1753 Oct 18. JE. Transript of a letter to Mr. gillespie, in an unidentified hand.	1753 October 18
b. 6, f. 239	7. 1753 Apr 14. JE. Letter to John Erskine. 2 leaves. ″Dwight pp. 533-534″	1753 April 14
b. 6, f. 240	8. 1753 Apr 14. JE. Transcript of a letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand.	1753 April 14
b. 6, f. 241	9. 1753 Apr. JE. Transcript of a letter to Master Timothy Edwards, in an unidentified hand. ″Dwight pp. 525-527″	1753 April
b. 6, f. 242	10. 1753 Apr 13. JE. Transcript of a letter to Andrew Oliver, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1753 April 13
1753	В	1753
b. 6, f. 243	1. 1753 Apr 13. JE. Fragment of a letter draft to Mr. Oliver. On "Proclamation for a publick fast," for 19 April 1753.	1753 April 13
b. 6, f. 244	2. 1753 Apr 13. JE. Fragment of a letter draft to Andrew Oliver.	1753 April 13
b. 6, f. 245	3. 1753 Apr 12. JE. Transcript of a letter to the Commissioners in Boston, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1753 April 12
b. 6, f. 246	4. 1753 Jan 30. JE. Fragment of a letter to Sir William Pepperell. On letter cover to JE.	1753 January 30
b. 6, f. 247	5. 1753 Jan 30. JE. Fragment of a letter draft to Sir William Pepperell. On broadside of "An Act more effectually to prevent profane Cursing and Swearing."	1753 January 30
b. 6, f. 248	6. 1753 Jan 30. JE. Transcript of a letter to Sir William Pepperell, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1753 January 30
b. 6, f. 249	7. 1753 Mar 19. JE. Letter draft to Speaker Hubbard. On broadside of "A Proclamation for a publick fast," for 16 Feb 1749.	1753 March 19, 1749
b. 6, f. 250	8. 1753 Apr 12. JE. Fragment of a letter draft to the Commissioners, on letter cover to JE.	1753 April 12
b. 6, f. 251	9. 1753 Mar 19. JE. Letter draft to Thomas Hubbard, (according to Sereno E. Dwight note) on broadside announcing Yale master's commencement program, 1751.	1753 March 19, 1751
b. 6, f. 252	9a. 1753 Mar 19. JE. Transcript of letter draft to Thomas Hubbard, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1753 March 19
1754	l	1754
b. 7, f. 253	1. 1754 Aug 20. Edwards, Lucy. Letter to Mrs. Mary Dwight. 2 leaves.	1754 August 20
b. 7 , f. 254	2. 1754 Apr 15. JE. Letter to Col. Timothy Dwight.	1754 April 15

b. 7, f. 255	3. 1754 Mar 8. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mr. Willard, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1754 March 8
b. 7, f. 256	4. 1754 Feb 25. JE. Transcript of a letter to Brigadier Dwight, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight. On verso: JE, letter to an unidentified recipient, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1754 February 25
b. 7 , f. 257	5. 1754 Feb 28. JE. Transcript of a letter to the "Provincial Agent," in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight. On verso: transcript of a letter to "Hon'd Sir," in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight, 2 Mar 1754	
b. 7, f. 258	6. 1754 Mar 8. JE. Letter draft to an unidentified recipient. On fragments of two letter covers addressed to JE. Also, four photostats and envelope with annotations in an unidentified hand.	1754 March 8
b. 7, f. 259	7. 1754 Mar 27. JE. Draft of Indian deposition. On letter cover addressed to JE at Stockbridge.	1754 March 27
1755		1755
b. 7, f. 260	1. 1755 Apr 15. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mr. Erskine, in an unidentified hand, postscript dated 2 Jun 1755. With an early partial copy of the letter in an unidentified hand, and a later partial copy of the letter in an unidentified hand. ["Erskine hand noted. 5/25/76"]	1755 April 15
b. 7, f. 261	2. 1755 Dec 11. JE. Letter to John Erskine. 2 leaves. "Dwight pp. 550-552"	1755 December 11
b. 7, f. 262	3. 1755 Dec 11. JE. Transcript of a letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand.	1755 December 11
b. 7, f. 263	4. 1755 Apr 15. JE. Letter to Mr. Erskine. 2 leaves. "Dwight pp. 545-548"	1755 April 15
b. 7, f. 264	5. 1755 Feb 26. JE. Transcript of a letter to Brigadier Dwight, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1755 February 26
b. 7, f. 265	6. 1755 Feb 26. JE. Letter to Brigadier Dwight.	1755 February 26
b. 7, f. 266	7. 1755 Sep 5. JE. Fragment of a letter to an unidentified recipient. On verso, notes by JE.	1755 September 5
b. 7 , f. 267	8. 1755 Sep 5. JE. Transcript of a letter to Col. Israel Williams, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1755 September 5
b. 7, f. 268	9. 1755 Sep 21. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mrs. [Williams?] of Connecticut, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1755 September 21
b. 7, f. 269	10. No date. JE. Letter draft to Mrs. Williams on 2 letter covers addressed to JE at Stockbridge.	Undated
1756	-1759 A	1756–1757
b. 7, f. 270	1. 1756 Nov 4. JE. Transcript of a letter to Timothy Edwards, in an unidentified hand.	1756 November 4
b. 7, f. 271	2. 1756 Apr 10. JE. ALS to Mr. McCulloch. 2 leaves.	1756 April 10

1756-1759 A (continued)

b. 7, f. 272	3. 1756 Apr 10. JE. Transcript of a letter to Mr. Mcculloch, in an unidentified hand.	1756 April 10
b. 7, f. 273	4. 1756 Aug 16. Edwards, Susanna. ALS to Mrs. Mary Dwight. 2 leaves.	1756 August 16
b. 7, f. 274	5. 1757 Mar 24. JE. Fragment of a letter to Timothy Edwards. Also, transcript of the same letter, in an unidentified hand.	1757 March 24
b. 7, f. 275	6. 1757 Dec 1. JE. ALS to Joseph Bellamy. 2 leaves.	1757 December 1
b. 7, f. 276	7. 1757 Dec 1. JE. Transcript of a letter to Joseph Bellamy, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1757 December 1
b. 7, f. 277	8. 1757 Aug 3. JE. Transcript of a letter to John Erskine, in an unidentified hand. ″Dwight pp. 558-563″	1757 August 3
b. 7, f. 278	9. 1757 Jul 25. JE. Fragment of a letter draft to Mr. Erskine. 2 leaves.	1757 July 25
b. 7, f. 279	10. 1757 Aug 3. JE. ALS to John Erskine. 4 leaves.	1757 August 3
1756	-1759 B	1757–1758
b. 7, f. 280	1. 1757 Nov 2. Burr, Esther. ALS to JE. 2 leaves.	1757 November 2
b. 7, f. 281	2. 1757 Jun 11. Hawley, Gideon. ALS to Mr. Dwight.	1757 June 11
b. 7, f. 282	3. 1757 Nov 2. Burr, Esther. Transcript of a letter to JE, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1757 November 2
b. 7, f. 283	4. 1757 Dec 22. Burr, Esther. ALS to Mr. Hogg.	1757 December 22
b. 7, f. 284	5. 1758 Mar 29. Ballantine, John. ALS to Mrs. Esther Hopkins. 2 leaves, 4 pieces.	1758 March 29
b. 7, f. 285	6. 1758 Apr 18. Parsons, Sarah. ALS to Mrs. Mary Dwight.	1758 April 18
b. 7, f. 286	7. 1758 Jan 4. Letter draft to the Trustees of the College of New Jersey, in an unidentified hand. On verso: JE, Farewell to Indians, dated 8 Jan 1758.	1758 January 1; 1758 January 8
	Accompanied by photostatic copy of the conclusion to the sermon in the Yale collection [GEN MSS 151]	
b. 7, f. 287	8. 1758 Apr 26. Parsons, Sarah. ALS to Mrs. Mary Dwight. 2 leaves.	1758 April 26
b. 7, f. 288	9. No date. Edwards, Sarah. ALS to "Dear Child." Letter from Susannah Edwards to "Dear Sister," dated 1758 Apr 3, on the same sheet.	1758 April 3
1756	-1759 C	1754–1759
b. 7, f. 289	1. 1758 Mar 22. Shippen, William. ALS to Mrs. Sarah Edwards. 2 leaves.	1758 March 22
b. 7, f. 290	2. 1758 Mar 22. Shippen, William. Transcript of a letter to Mrs. Sarah Edwards, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1758 March 22
b. 7, f. 291	3. 1758 Jan 2. [Burr, Esther]. AL to unidentified recipient. 2 leaves.	1758 January 2

1756-1759 C (continued)

b. 7, f. 292	4. 1758 Apr 3. Edwards, Sarah. Transcript of a letter to Mrs. Esther Burr, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight. His transcript of a letter of Susanna Edwards to "My Dear Sister," on the same sheet.	1758 April 3
b. 7, f. 293	5. 1758 Mar 29. Ballantine, John. ALS to Mrs. Esther Hopkins, in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1758 March 29
b. 7, f. 294	6. 1754 Feb 28. JE. ALS to Joseph Bellamy. 2 leaves.	1754 February 28
b. 7, f. 295	7. 1759 Dec 4. Parsons, Sarah. ALS to Mrs Susanna Edwards. 2 leaves.	1759 December 4
b. 7, f. 296	8. 1756 May 31. Bellamy, Joseph. ALS to JE. On verso: JE, Sermon to the Indians, July 1756, with a transcript of the letter in the hand of Sereno E. Dwight.	1756
1760	0-1765	1760-1765
b. 7, f. 297	1. 1763 May. JE, Jr. "Logicae Compendium." Notebook.	1763 May
b. 7, f. 298	2. No date. Edwards, Susanna. ALS to Mrs. Mary Dwight, "Sunday Evening." 2 leaves.	Undated
b. 7, f. 299	3. No date. Edwards, Susanna. ALS to Mrs. Mary Dwight, beginning: "I am very thankful to you" 2 leaves.	Undated
b. 7, f. 300	4. 1760 Apr 8. Parsons, Sarah. ALS to Miss Susanna Edwards.	1760 April 8
b. 7 , f. 301	5. 1760 Jul 19. Edwards, Susanna. ALS to Mrs. Mary Dwight.	1760 July 19
b. 7, f. 302	6. 1761 Oct 10. Edwards, Susanna [Edwards, Lucy]. ALS to "Dear Sister" [Mary Dwight]. 2 leaves. Also contains, a letter of Susanna Edwards to Timothy Dwight, no date.	1761 October 10, Undated
b. 7 , f. 303	7. 1761 Oct 19. Parsons, Sarah. ALS to Mrs. Mary Dwight.	1761 October 19
b. 7, f. 304	8. 1762 [Oct 11?]. Edwards, Susanna. 2 fragments of a letter to Mrs. Mary Dwight.	1762 [October 11?]
b. 7, f. 305	9. 1762 Sep 8. Parsons, Sarah. ALS to Mrs. Mary Dwight.	1762 September 8
b. 7, f. 306	10. 1764 Sep 15. Woodbridge, Lucy. ALS to Mrs. Mary Dwight.	1764 September 15

Series II: Jonathan Edwards Autograph Sermons, 1733–1758

0.63 linear feet

The series contains sermons and sermon notes written by Jonathan Edwards. Four of the sermons listed here are not present in the series, but are represented by an empty envelope. In three of the cases the original manuscript of the sermon is not present in the collection and the original is thought not to survive; in one case the sermon is on the verso of a letter filed in Series I. For the three sermons no longer extant in the collection, the copies referred to in the listing and on the envelopes is the copy by Sereno Dwight in Series III.

Arranged as received from Andover Newton Theological Seminary.

b. 8, f. 307	Processing notes regarding sermons	1960-1981
b. 8, f. 308	1. Gen. 25:29-34 "(Prob. 1741-2) + Jan 1752" "(no "Doc." Theme is Esau's selling his birthright)"	Undated
b. 8, f. 309	2. Ps. 1-3 (1) "(Prob. 1742)" "Christ is to the heart of a saint like a river to the root of a tree that is planted by it." "4 lvs scrap paper pinned together. Outline."	[circa 1742]
b. 8, f. 310	3. Ps. 36-37 "Lieutenant Kingsley's." "I. The loving kindness of God towards men through Jesus Christ is transcendently excellent. II. This great excellency is the ground on which the children of men put their trust under the shadow of God's wings. (p.1)"	1750/51 March
b. 8, f. 311	4. Prov. 3:6 "St." "If men will have respect to God and honor him in all their ways, God will make their paths straight. (p.1). (To Indians going off to fight with the English against the French)"	1756 June
b. 8, f. 312	5. Prov. 5:11 "Mar 30, 1751 + Ind. 1751" "At Sarg.Allen's." "Subject: The mourning of sinners in an other world. (p.1)"	1751 March 31
b. 8, f. 313	6. Prov. 5:11-13 (3) "St. Ind. & Moh., Feb. 1752." "1. At last when wicked men come to hell they will believe that they heard in the preaching of the word 2. They will see what fools they were. (p.1; there are three main heads.)"	1752 February
b. 8, f. 314	7. Prov. 8:17 (1) "Sabbath night at neighbor Allyn's, Nov., 1750 + 1751. St. Ind. & Moh., 1751." "Subject, Christ's love to those that love him. (p.1)"	1750 Nov, 1751
b. 8, f. 315	8. Eccl. 2:26 "use of worldly things by godly and wicked" "Doc. 1. That 'tis to the godly alone that God gives wisdom and understanding 2. Doc 2. That God gives wicked men the travail and vexation of gathering and keeping worldly goods(p.4; also p. 17 slightly modified)"	Undated
b. 8, f. 316	9. Eccl. 4:5 "Many persons suffer the most extreme misery through a slothful neglecting to seek their own good. (p.2)"	1732/3 February

b. 8, f. 317	10. Is. 65:17-18 "(probably between Jan.&Mar. or Apr. 1744)" " The work of redemption ois as it were the creation of a new heaven and a new earth. (extant p. 41). (Beginning, exegesis, and one main unit lost at beginning)"	Undated [1744 Jan-Apr?]
b. 8, f. 318	11. Hos. 2:15 "God is wont to cause hope and comfort to arise to souls after trouble and humbling for sin, and according as the troubler is slain and forsaken. (pp.6,22,61)"	1737 September
b. 8, f. 319	12. Matt. 7:15 "That tho' there may be a very great likeness between true Christians and false professors, yet there is also a vast unlikeliness."	1742/3 January
b. 8, f. 320	13. Matt. 13:3-4 (3) "Stockbridge Indians, Jan. 1752" "Obs. Those that God sends forth to preach the gospel are fitly compared to the husbandman that goes forth th sew his seed. (p.1) (This sermon is probably the first in a Stockbridge series on the parable of the sower. Four others, presumably 2-5 are in the Yale collection.)"	1752 January
b. 8, f. 321	14. Matt. 19:22 "Jun 1737 + 1751. Part to St. Ind. & Moh., April 1752." "There are some persons that wish they had salvation and yet won't comply with the necessary means of it. (p. 5)"	1731 June, 1751, 1752
b. 8, f. 322	15. Matt. 26: 26-30 "Lecture before sacrament, St. Ind. Jan 31, 1752" " (No 'Doc.' or headings. Incipit: 'this was the last night before X was crucified./ X knew he should be crucified the next day tho the d. did not know it')"	1752 January 31
b. 8, f. 323	16. Luke 11:21-22 (2) "St. Ind. April, 1754." "I. The devil is an enemy that is like a strong man armed. (p.1) (There are VI heads and Application)."	1754 April
b. 8, f. 324	17. Luke 14:16 "That the spiritual blessings of the gospel are fitly represented by a feast. (p.3)"	Undated
b. 8, f. 325	18. Luke 15:6 "Middle or late 1740s?" "I. How Christ rejoicesII. Why III. How he expresses his joy (p.1; this is outline of sermon)"	Undated
b. 8, f. 326	19. Luke 15:10 "(Text: 'There is joy in the presence of the angels of God over one sinner that repenteth''Doctrine' is lost.) An Indeterminate number of pages are missing after the first leaf. "At Canaan, Westfield, Ipswich, Stockbridge"	1750 September, 1751
b. 8, f. 327	20. Luke 17:34 "That there will be a great difference made hereafter in the state of many that have lived together here."	Undated, 1755 November

b. 8, f. 328	21. Luke 18:9-14 [envelope only] "In letter file, 1756-1759C (#8)" "St[ockbridge], July, 1756." "God hates them that trust in their own righteousness. (p.1)" "One piece made into two pages (four columns); the other side of the piece contains a letter from Joseph Bellamy, Bethlehem, May 31, 1756. The sermon has been left in the chronological file of letters and papers, q.v.)"	1756 July
b. 8, f. 329	22: Luke 22:30 "The saints shall hereafter as it were eat and drink with Christ at his table in his kingdom of glory. (p.4)"	1733 June
b. 8, f. 330	23. John 8:12 (3) "1. How Christ is the light of the world. 2. How his light gives life. 3. how if we would have the good of this light and would have life by it we must folow Christ. (p.1)"	1753 July
b. 8, f. 331	24. John 12:13 ″Private meeting at Serg. Allyn's, Dec., 1750.″ ″Those who are born of God alone are admitted to the privileges of God's family. (p.1)″	1750 December
b. 8, f. 332	25. Rom. 4:20 ″Nath. Phelps's, December, 1743 + May, 1753. ″Subject: Abraham's faith (p.1)″	1743 December, 1753
b. 8, f. 333	26: I Cor. 2:14 (1) "There is a spiritual understanding of divine things which all natural and unregenerated men are destitute of. (p.4) (Concluded in sermon 2)"	Undated
b. 8, f. 334	27. I Cor 2:14 (2) "(2nd half of above sermon)"	Undated
b. 8, f. 335	28. l Cor. 6:10 ″St. Ind., Feb 1752." "They that are drunkards shall not go to heaven. (.1)" ″Defective; only 4 pp. extant."	1752 February
b. 8, f. 336	 29. I Cor .12:31. Copy only: no MS is extant. [envelope only in folder] "Although these sermons are copies, they function as originals, the autographs having been lost." "Christians should earnestly seek the best experiences (p.4); (p. 23 contains a reference to 'the Rev. Mr. Whitefield' 'in one of his sermons." 	Undated
b. 8, f. 337	30. I Cor. 13:1-10 (1)-(15). Copy only: no original MS is extant. [envelope only in folder] "Although these sermons are copies, they function as originals, the autographs having been lost." "(This is a series of sermons printed by Tryon Edwards as CHARITY AND ITS FRUITS in 1852. Tryon Edwards expanded the 4th booklet into two "lectures", thus getting sixteen in his series.)"	1738 April- October
b. 9, f. 338	31. II Cor. 3:18 (2) "Sabbath day night at Sargt. Allyns, November 1750 + Jly, 1752." " 'Tis a sight of the glory of God in Christ is that thing and that only which changes the elect of god and makes 'em like God."	1750 November, 1752 July
b. 9, f. 339	32. II Cor. 4:18 (3) "Private meeting at Preserved Bartlet's, July 1748." "That vast dist. (diff.?) that there is between things that are seen and things that are not seen, (p.1)"	1748 July

b. 9, f. 340	33. Gal. 3:13-14	1746 April
	"The Holy Spirit or the third person of the Trinity and the fruits is the sum of the blessing that Christ purchased for us in the work of our redemption. (p.2)" (Onethe thirda kind of a trilogy on the Trinity; the other two are in Yale coll."	
b. 9, f. 341	34. Gal. 5:6 (2)	1751 March, 1752
	"At Pascommuck, Nath. Clark's, March, 1751 + Jan., 1752." " 'Tis a great and distinguishing property of a saving faith, that it worketh by love. (p.1)"	January
b. 9, f. 342	35. Eph. 2:13	1752 February
	"St. Ind. & Moh., Feb., 1752." "I. Men as they are by nature are far off from God II. They that are true Christians, tho' once they were far off, yet now are made nigh (p.1; there are three headings.)"	
b. 9, f. 343	36. Heb. 2-3. Copy only: no MS is extant [envelope only in folder]	[1738-1740?]
	"Although these sermons are copies, they function as originals, the autographs having been lost." "They that neglect so great salvation as is offered in the gospel, do bring themselves into exceeding danger of damnation (p.3 of copy)."	
b. 9, f. 344	37. Heb. 11:16 (1)	1751 October,
	"Northampton, Oct. 1751 + 1751." " 'Tis the character of true believers while in this world to desire a better country, even an heavenly. (p.1)" (Possibly defective between second and last 4-p. piece)"	1751
b. 9, f. 345	38. Heb. 13:7-8 [envelope only in folder]	1758 January 8
	"(in letter file, 1756-1759B (#7))". "This sermon is on the back part of the council's letter of Jan 4, 1758 releasing JE to the Princeton trustees."	
b. 9, f. 346	39. l Pet. 5:8	1755, Undated
	"St. Ind., some part, n.d. 1755" "that the devil is exceeding great in his endeavors for the destruction of men's souls. (pp. 3, 17)"	
b. 9, f. 347	40. II Pet. 1:19 (3)	1750/1751 March
	"St. Jonathan Rust's, March, 1750/51" "That the Lord Jesus Christ in his coming into the soul in his spiritual and blessed making(?) influences is like the rising of the day star. (p.1)"	
b. 9, f. 348	41. II Pet. 1:19 (4)	1751 August
	"To the Mohawks at the treaty, Aug. 16, 1751." "(Text: 'We have also a more sure word of prophecy.' Homiletically formless. Begins: 'These honourable gentelmen speak in the namebut I in the name of J.X. / When G. first made man he had a principle of holiness in his heart')"	
b. 9, f. 349	42. I John 3:3	1744 March,
	"A true hope of a state of salvation is altogether of a purifying nature in everyone that has it. (p.1)" $$	1753 January
b. 9, f. 350	43. Rev. 3:4	1743/44 March 1,
	"At Pascommuck, March 1, 1743/4 + October, 1753." "I. What sort of persons they are that Christ promises a glorious reward to (p.1; there are IV main props.)"	1753 October

b. 9, f. 351	44. No text (Speech to Mohawks) "Begins: 'There was a young woman whose name was Mary that lived in a town in the land of Canaan called Nazareth. She was one of the posterity of a greta king of the Jews I told you [about] whose name was David' (p.1)" "(Defective after p. 8)"	1750/51 February
b. 9, f. 352	45. No text (to Indian Children) "To the Indian Children at Stockbridge, Feb. 1750/51." "Begins: 'There is a great God that has made heaven and earthwho has made you. And he has not made you like the beastsgiven you soulsnever diego into another world' (p.1)"	1750/51 February
b. 9, f. 353	46. No text (Speech to Mohawks) "Probably January, 1751." "Heading: 'Speech to the Mohawks.' (really a sort of sermon)" "Begins: 'I bid you all wellcome to N.E. I am glad to see you. "Your coming here will rejoyce the hearts of all good men as they hope it will be a means of your coming into greater light and knowledge in the Xtian religion" ' (p.1)"	1751 January

Series III: Miscellaneous Papers, 1685-1713, undated

2.71 linear feet

The series contains sermons by James Pierpont, father of Sarah Pierpont Edwards, and copies by Sereno E. Dwight and others of Jonathan Edwards's writings.

Arranged as received from Andover Newton Theological Seminary.

	1. Pierpont, James. Father-in-law of JE. A packet of 30 booklets, 8 volumes, containing sermons.	1685-1713, undated
	Undated	
b. 10, f. 354	Fragment (2pp.)	
b. 10 , f. 355	Genesis 4:17 (also contains notes on Genesis 1-34, Exodus 5, Mark 2, Luke, Romans, 1&2 Corinthians, and essay "Concerning the Sentient Soul in General")	
b. 10, f. 356	Psalm 119:37	
b. 10, f. 357	Jeremiah 31:18 ; Jeremiah 31:19	
b. 10, f. 358	Matthew 13:3-9	
b. 10, f. 359	Matthew 13:45-46	
b. 10, f. 360	Acts 10	
b. 10, f. 361	2 Cor. 7:1	
	Booklets containing series of sermons	1685–1696
b. 10, f. 362	Booklet I Philippians 2:12-13	1685–1686
b. 10, f. 363	Booklet II Proverbs 9:1-12	1696
b. 10, f. 364	Booklet III Acts 24:16	1696
b. 10, f. 365	Booklet IV Proverbs 1:24-32	1696
b. 10, f. 366	Booklet V Psalm 92:15; Job 11:7-9	1696
	Single dated sermons	1687–1713
b. 10, f. 367	Psalm 103: 3-5	1687 February 22
b. 10, f. 368	Psalm 107: 8-9, Luke 17:10	1691 Jun 21, 1691 July 5
b. 10, f. 369	Psalm 58:6-7	1696 March 17
b. 10, f. 370	Hebrews 10:38-39 (2)	1696 March 29

1. Pierpont, James. Father-in-law of JE. A packet of 30 booklets [...] > Single dated sermons (continued)

b. 10, f. 371	Hosea 8:9	1696 April 23
b. 10, f. 372	Matthew 25:23	1696 May 3
b. 10, f. 373	Psalm 144:9-11	1696 June 17
b. 10, f. 374	Psalm 39:9	1696 October 18
b. 10, f. 375	Psalm 136:23-25	1696 November 5
b. 10, f. 376	Luke 22:41-42	1696 November 9
b. 10, f. 377	Jeremiah 12:1	1696 November 15
b. 10, f. 378	Jeremiah 23:24	1697 August 8
b. 10, f. 379	Job. 31:32	1701 April 27
b. 10, f. 380	Psalm 10:12	1704 July 26, 1704 August 30
b. 10, f. 381	Proverbs 28:13	1713 January 25
b. 10, f. 382	Sermon not in Pierpont's hand [Acts 10:33]	Undated
b. 10, f. 383	2 pp "questions against joining to the church"	Undated
b. 10, f. 384	2. [Smyth, E. C. (?)]. Index of the Dwight transcriptions of the "Miscellanies." 22 leaves, quarto.	Undated
b. 10, f. 385	3. JE. Copy of portion of "Images or Shadows of Divine Things," by Sereno E. Dwight. 10 leaves, quarto.	Undated
b. 10, f. 386	4. Dwight, Sereno E. A group of papers about his Life of JE: a) Draft of Preface to Life; b) Drafts of portions of the Life, including copies of JE manuscripts.	Undated
b. 10, f. 387	5. List of sermon copies, unidentified compiler.	Undated
b. 11, f. 388	6. JE. Copies of Sermons prepared by Sereno E. Dwight. Quarto booklets.	Undated
b. 11, f. 389	1. Gen. 3:11	
b. 11, f. 390	2. II Sam. 20:19	
b. 11, f. 391	3. Job 21:19-20	
b. 11, f. 392	4. Ps. 66:18	
b. 11, f. 393	5. Ps. 72:6	
b. 11, f. 394	6. Ps. 106:5	
b. 11, f. 395	7. Ps. 119:56	

6. JE. Copies of Sermons prepared by Sereno E. Dwight. Quarto bo [...] (continued)

b. 11, f. 397	9. ls. 53:3
b. 11, f. 398	10: Amos 8:11
b. 11, f. 399	11. Matt. 10:28
b. 11, f. 400	12. Matt. 12:7
b. 11, f. 401	13. Matt. 22:9-10
b. 11, f. 402	14: Matt. 22:14
b. 12, f. 403	15. Matt. 25:24-28
b. 12, f. 404	16. Luke 10:38-42
b. 12, f. 405	17. Luke 15:28-31
b. 12 , f. 406	18. Luke 16:24
b. 12, f. 407	19. Luke 24:32
b. 12, f. 408	20. John 1:17
b. 12, f. 409	21. John 13:23
b. 12, f. 410	22. John 15:15
b. 12, f. 411	23. John 16:8
b. 12, f. 412	24. Acts 13:41
b. 12, f. 413	25. Rom. 5:10
b. 12, f. 414	26. Rom. 11:7
b. 12, f. 415	27. I Cor. 10:11
b. 12, f. 416	28. I. Cor. 12:31
	29. l. Cor. 13:1-10 (15 booklets)
b. 12, f. 417-421	I. Cor. 13:1-4
b. 13, f. 422-431	I. Cor. 13:4-10
b. 13, f. 432	30. II Cor. 3:18
b. 13, f. 433	31. II Cor. 9:6
b. 13, f. 434	32. II Cor. 13:5
b. 13, f. 435	33. Gal. 2:17-18
b. 13, f. 436	34. Eph. 1:10
b. 13, f. 437	35. Heb 1:3
b. 13, f. 438	36. Heb 2:3

6. JE. Copies of Sermons prepared by Sereno E. Dwight. Quarto bo [...] (continued)

b. 13, f. 439	37. Heb. 9:13-14	
b. 13, f. 440	38. James 2:18	
b. 13, f. 441	39. I John 3:8	
b. 13, f. 442	40. Rev. 14:14	
b. 14, f. 443-453	7. JE. Copies of "Miscellanies" in quarto booklets, pp. 1-540, 703-1646. Prepared by Sereno E. Dwight. Organized by topical headings rather than date of composition. (folders 1-11 of 15 folders) "Originals at Yale"	
b. 15, f. 454-457	7. JE. Copies of "Miscellanies" in quarto booklets, pp. 1-540, 703-1646. Prepared by Sereno E. Dwight. Organized by topical headings rather than date of composition. (folders 12-15 of 15 folders)	
b. 15, f. 458	8. JE. JE's Journal of Northampton Communion Controversy. Copy prepared for Sereno E. Dwight. Quarto booklet, pp. 1-136.	Undated
	10. JE. "Prophesies of the Messiah" and "Fulfillment of the Prophesies of the Messiah" Copies in several hands in 5 notebooks, quarto.	Undated
b. 15, f. 459	Prophesies of the Messiah No. 1: From No. 1. to No. 39	
b. 15, f. 460	Prophesies of the Messiah No. 2: From No. 39 to middle of No. 79	
b. 15, f. 461	Prophesies of the Messiah No. 3: From the middle of No. 79 to the end. Also, Fulfillment of the Prophesies of the Messiah, from No. 1 to No. 39	
b. 16, f. 462	Fulfillment of the Prophesies of the Messiah. No: 4: from the middle of no. 39 to the end. No. 181 first part in pamphlet no. 3 (from No. 1 to 39)	
b. 16, f. 463	Prophesies of the Messaiah No 4	
b. 16, f. 464	11. Dwight, Sereno E. Draft of portion of a history of the Hebrews. 24 leaves, quarto.	Undated

Series IV: Letters Regarding Edwards Manuscripts, 1824-1903, undated

0.21 linear feet

Letters among Edwards descendants and other scholars and editors concerning the papers and publishing projects related to the papers.

Arranged chronologically, as received from Andover Newton Theological Seminary.

b. 17, f. 465	List and notes List begins with 2.	
b. 17 , f. 466	2. Mrs. S. E. Dwight to W. T. Dwight	1824 August 19
b. 17, f. 466	3. S. Converse to W. T. Dwight	1829 April 13
b. 17, f. 466	4. S. Converse to W. T. Dwight	1829 April 15
b. 17, f. 466	5. S. E. Dwight and S. Converse to W. T. Dwight	1829 May 8
b. 17, f. 466	6. Phebe Farrar to W. T. Dwight	1846 March 24
b. 17, f. 467	7. S.E. Dwight to W. T. Dwight	1846 June 2
b. 17, f. 467	8. William Edwards to S. E. Dwight	1847 October 5
b. 17, f. 467	9. William Edwards to S. E. Dwight	1847 October 9
b. 17, f. 467	10. T. Dwight to S. E. Dwight	1850 November 12
b. 17, f. 468	11. Henry E. Dwight to Thomas Bradford	1850 December 7
b. 17, f. 468	12. W. T. Dwight to his father	1850 December 10
b. 17, f. 468		
	13. T. Dwight to W. T. Dwight	1851 February 6
b. 17 , f. 468	13. T. Dwight to W. T. Dwight 14. William Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1851 February 6 1851 April 3
b. 17, f. 468	14. William Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1851 April 3
b. 17, f. 468 b. 17, f. 469	14. William Edwards to W. T. Dwight 15. Edward Hooker to W. T. Dwight	1851 April 3 1851 April 18
b. 17, f. 468 b. 17, f. 469 b. 17, f. 469	14. William Edwards to W. T. Dwight 15. Edward Hooker to W. T. Dwight 16. W. T. Dwight to Edward W. Hooker	1851 April 3 1851 April 18 1851 April 21
b. 17, f. 468 b. 17, f. 469 b. 17, f. 469 b. 17, f. 469	14. William Edwards to W. T. Dwight 15. Edward Hooker to W. T. Dwight 16. W. T. Dwight to Edward W. Hooker 17. W. T. Dwight to William Edwards	1851 April 3 1851 April 18 1851 April 21 1851 April 23
b. 17, f. 468 b. 17, f. 469 b. 17, f. 469 b. 17, f. 469 b. 17, f. 469 b. 17, f. 469	 14. William Edwards to W. T. Dwight 15. Edward Hooker to W. T. Dwight 16. W. T. Dwight to Edward W. Hooker 17. W. T. Dwight to William Edwards 18. E. W. Hooker to W. T. Dwight 	1851 April 3 1851 April 18 1851 April 21 1851 April 23 1851 April 26
b. 17, f. 468 b. 17, f. 469 b. 17, f. 470	14. William Edwards to W. T. Dwight15. Edward Hooker to W. T. Dwight16. W. T. Dwight to Edward W. Hooker17. W. T. Dwight to William Edwards18. E. W. Hooker to W. T. Dwight19. W. T. Dwight to E. W. Hooker	1851 April 3 1851 April 18 1851 April 21 1851 April 23 1851 April 26 1851 April 29

b. 17, f. 470	22. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	1853 November 10
b. 17, f. 470	23. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	1853 November 14
b. 17, f. 470	24. Tryon Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1853 November 14
b. 17, f. 470	25. Tryon Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1853 December 5
b. 17, f. 471	26. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	1853 December 17
b. 17, f. 471	27. Tryon Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1853 December 26
b. 17, f. 471	28. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	1853 December 28
b. 17, f. 471	29. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	1854 July 17
b. 17, f. 471	29a. W. T. Dwight to Rev. Dr. Hooker	1854 August 21
b. 17, f. 471	30. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	1854 August 23
b. 17, f. 471	31. E. W. Hooker to W. T. Dwight	1854 August 23
b. 17, f. 472	32. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	1854 September 18
b. 17, f. 472	33. Tryon Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1854 September 26
b. 17, f. 472	34. Form of agreement for publishing (also rough draft)	1854
b. 17, f. 472	35. Tryon Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1854 September
b. 17, f. 472	36. Tryon Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1854 October 23
b. 17, f. 473	37. Tryon Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1854 November 1
b. 17, f. 473	38. Tryon Edwards to W. T. Dwight	1854 November 4
b. 17, f. 473		
	39. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	1854 November 16
b. 17, f. 473	39. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight 40. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	
b. 17, f. 473 b. 17, f. 473		16
	40. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	16 1854 Wed. 26
b. 17, f. 473	40. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight 41. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight	16 1854 Wed. 26 1855 February 22
b. 17, f. 473 b. 17, f. 474	40. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight 41. E. A. Park to W. T. Dwight 42. Tryon Edwards to W. T. Dwight	16 1854 Wed. 26 1855 February 22 1857 February 26

b. 17, f. 474	45. E. W. Hooker to E. C. Smyth	1868 February 11
b. 17, f. 474	Tryon Edwards to E. A. Park	1877 December 11
b. 17, f. 474	46. E. A. Park to E. C. Smyth	1878 April 27
b. 17, f. 474	Tryon Edwards to E. A. Park	1879 September 15
b. 17, f. 474	Jonathan Edwards to Tryon Edwards	1880 July 9
b. 17, f. 474	47. O. W. Holmes to E. C. Smyth	1880 July 9
b. 17, f. 474	48. O. W. Holmes to E. C. Smyth	1880 July 17
b. 17, f. 474	49. E. C. Smyth to Editor of Independent	1880 July 13
b. 17, f. 475	50. Tryon Edwards to E. C. Smyth	1880 July 15
b. 17, f. 475	51. Dr. Twining (Ed. Independent) to E. C. Smyth	1880 September 21
b. 17, f. 475	52. Dr. Twining (Ed. Independent) to E. C. Smyth	1880 October 4
b. 17, f. 475	53. E. C. Smyth to Dr. Twining	1881 January 22
b. 17, f. 475	T. Edwards to E. A. Park	1888 January 17
b. 17, f. 475	T. Edwards to E. A. Park	1888 March 5
b. 17, f. 475	T. Edwards to E. A. Park	1890 August 11
b. 17, f. 475	T. Edwards to E. A. Park	1890 October 22
b. 17, f. 475	54. Minutes of conversation with Miss Lucy F. Partridge	1903 August 7
b. 17, f. 475	Tryon Edwards to "Dear Sir" [E. A. Park]	Undated

Series V: Additional Edwards-related Materials, 1714-1901, undated

0.42 linear feet

The series consists of items from the Andover Newton Theological Seminary library that relate to Edwards or his family but which were not included in the finding aid created in the 1950s-1970s.

Arranged as received from Andover Newton Theological Seminary.

b. 18, f. 476	Note concerning this material	
b. 18, f. 477	[Aaron Burr] sermon notes found in E. A. Park papers	1754–1755
b. 18, f. 478	Two fragments of sermons, authors unknown, dates unknown.	Undated
b. 18, f. 479	Sermons on the text Ecclesiastes 7:4 "It does not appear who was the author."	1750 September 30, October 7, 1750
b. 18, f. 480	"No. 321 A Sacramental discourse. Preach'd at Haverhill May 12, 1754" [author unknown]	1754 May 12
b. 18, f. 481	Theological Principles and Statements	Undated
	"Chief End of Man. Foundation of Virture. Means of Grace. Faith and Repentance, etc No date. No author given [Jonathan Edwards, the Younger]?"	
b. 18, f. 482	3 Sermons copied by [Timothy Dwight Edwards]	1802–1813
b. 18, f. 483	Account of the out-pouring of the Spirit of God in Scotland	Undated
	"I am not able to decipher the handwriting; it would appear to be as early as the period of Timothy Edwardsat least a part of it. M. L. Ropes"	
b. 18, f. 484	Letter to Benjamin Doolittle, signed by Benjamin Wright, Eliezar Wright, and Eliezar Holton, accompanied by fragment of letter from Doolittle to Wright, March 3.	March 12 AD 1738/9, 1738-9 March 3
	"Concerning charges against him of favoring Arminian Sentiments."	
b. 18, f. 485	Sermon by [?] on the Cleansing of Naaman. Text II Kings 5:9-15	Undated
b. 18, f. 486	Lines on Miss Emily G. Hutchins, who died Oct 14, 1846	Undated
b. 18, f. 487	[Timothy Dwight?], "Mr. Huntington's O. S." Text Galatians 1:8,9,10	Undated
b. 18, f. 488	Letters to Sereno E. Dwight from [Lucy] Whittlesey, 1824, and Thomas Hubbard, 1830. Accompanied by letter to Sereno E. Dwight from Thomas Hubbard, 1830, May 18.	1824 January 19, 1830 May 19
b. 18, f. 489	"Printed circular, [respects?] a General Contract for Prayer" Addressed to Rev. Timothy Dwight, Greenfield	1794
b. 18, f. 490	Sereno Dwight word list, manuscript	Undated
b. 18, f. 491	"Napoleonic Wars, Sereno Dwight," manuscript	Undated
b. 18, f. 492	E. Cornelius letter to Rev. Wm. M. Rogers Accompanied by letter from Adelphus H. Hardy to C. F. P. Bancroft, 1888 Feb 6	1846 December 1
b. 18, f. 493-494	Poetry transcriptions, manuscript	Undated

b. 18, f. 495	"Colloquy. Eloquence and Poetry. [no author given]"	Undated
b. 18, f. 496	"Shorthand of Jonathan Edwards deciphered by Wm. P. Upham for Professor Egbert C. Smyth." Accompanied by letter from Upham to Smyth.	1901 March 29
b. 18, f. 497	Clippings and receipt for transport of "the box containing Edwards's Manuscript Sermons"	1829–1885
b. 18, f. 498	Manuscript fragments, including "Prayer of a defendant Church" and "Ministers Protestation [etc.]"	1714/15, Undated
b. 18, f. 499	Dwight genealogical notes, on verso of printed broadside "A Hymn for December 22, 1820. The Second Centurial Anniversary of the landing of the New-England Fathers at Plymouth"	1820, Undated
b. 18, f. 500	List or index for Edwards sermons?	Undated
b. 18, f. 501	Galley proofs, corrected, for printed Edwards sermons, Appendices A through D; "Remarks on the sermons concerning the Restoration of the Jews," manuscript signed "July 1825/W.T.D."; and cover inscribed "Comments on the Life of Christ 1889-1793" written on verso of printed broadside "Catalogue of the Faculty and Students of Yale College, November 1816."	1816-1825, undated

Series VI: Andover Newton Theological Seminary Collection File, 1957-2014, undated

0.21 linear feet

This series consists of information about the collection kept as part of the Andover Newton Theological Seminary Library's files. It includes the paper finding aids on which this present finding aid is based and correspondence documenting the work of Yale editors with the collection.

Arranged as received from Andover Newton Theological Seminary, with the exception that the nineteenthcentury correspondence about the collection orginially filed here has been removed to create a separate series (Series IV).

b. 19, f. 502	Finding aid prepared by editors of Yale edition of the works of Jonathan Edwards while the papers were on loan to the Yale library from June 1957 to September 1974.	1974
	2 copies. One is annotated and corrected.	
b. 19, f. 503	Jonathan Edwards Inventory	1974–2017
	"Control Files," copy of finding aid annotated and augmented with additional lists and microfilm guide.	
b. 19 , f. 504	Re: Andover Collection	2011-2014 <i>,</i> undated
b. 19, f. 505	Claghorn correspondence	1977–1995
b. 19, f. 506	Re: 1980 Harvard Transfer	1980
b. 19, f. 507	Yale Edition Correspondence	1957–2005
b. 19, f. 508	Re: Yale Exhibition 1990	1989–1990
b. 19, f. 509	Re: Yale Collection	Undated
b. 19, f. 510	Re: Yale Deposit	1957–1974
b. 19, f. 511	Copies of articles regarding Edwards and the slave trade	1997, undated
	Articles by Kenneth P. Minkema and A. Owen Aldridge (1997), and Diana Yount (undated).	
b. 19, f. 512	The New England Quarterly (March 1948)	1948
	Includes article by Perry Miller titled "Jonathan Edwards' Sociology."	
b. 20	Photocopy file 29 Folders	
	Folders containing photocopies of manuscripts in the collection, arranged in order of the date groupings in Series I. Manuscripts, with one folder of sermons at the end. Referenced on wrappers of original material as "photocopy file."	

Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

Subjects

Broadsides Calvinism -- United States Congregationalism -- Sermons Great Awakening Indians of North America -- Missions --Massachusetts Preaching -- United States -- History -- 17th century Revivals -- Massachusetts -- Northampton Sermons Stockbridge Indians

Geographic Names

Northampton (Mass.) Stockbridge (Mass.)

Genres / Formats

Church records Family papers

Occupations

Clergy -- United States -- 18th century

Names

Dwight, Sereno Edwards, 1786-1850 Dwight, Timothy, 1752-1817 Dwight, William T. (William Theodore), 1795-1865 Edwards, Jonathan, 1703-1758 Edwards, Timothy, 1669-1758 Pierpont, James, 1660-1714

Families

Edwards family

Acquired From

Andover Newton Theological School, donor